Wiltshire Council

~—"->~. Where everybody matters

AGENDA

Meeting: Southern Area Planning Committee

Place: Alamein Suite - City Hall, Malthouse Lane, Salisbury, SP2 7TU
Date: Thursday 10 April 2014

Time: 6.00 pm

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to David Parkes, of Democratic Services,
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line (01225) 718220 or email
david.parkes@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115.

This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

Membership:
CliIr Richard Britton Cllr George Jeans
CliIr Richard Clewer CliIr lan McLennan
Clir Brian Dalton ClIr lan Tomes
CliIr Christopher Devine ClIr Fred Westmoreland
(Vice-Chairman) (Chairman)
ClIr Jose Green Clir lan West

Clir Mike Hewitt

Substitutes:
Clir Terry Chivers Clir Helena McKeown
Clir Ernie Clark Cllr Leo Randall
Clir Tony Deane Clir John Smale
Clir Dennis Drewett Cllr John Walsh
Clir Peter Edge Clir Bridget Wayman

CliIr Russell Hawker Clir Graham Wright




AGENDA

Part |

Items to be considered when the meeting is open to the public

Apologies for Absence

To receive any apologises or substitutions for the meeting.

Minutes (Pages 1 - 6)

To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 20
March 2014.

Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by
the Standards Committee.

Chairman's Announcements

To receive any announcements through the Chair.

Public Participation and Councillors' Questions

The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public.
Statements

Members of the public who wish to speak either in favour or against an
application or any other item on this agenda are asked to register in person no
later than 5.50pm on the day of the meeting.

The Chairman will allow up to 3 speakers in favour and up to 3 speakers against
an application and up to 3 speakers on any other item on this agenda. Each
speaker will be given up to 3 minutes and invited to speak immediately prior to
the item being considered. The rules on public participation in respect of
planning applications are detailed in the Council’s Planning Code of Good
Practice.



7a

Questions

To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the
Council received in accordance with the constitution which excludes, in
particular, questions on non-determined planning applications. Those wishing to
ask questions are required to give notice of any such questions in writing to the
officer named on the front of this agenda no later than 5pm on 3 April 2014.
Please contact the officer named on the front of this agenda for further advice.
Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman decides that the matter
is urgent.

Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website.

Planning Appeals (Pages 7 - 8)

To receive details of completed and pending appeals.

Planning Applications
To consider and determine the following planning applications:

14/01088/FUL - Hersanmine, Scotts Hill, Donhead St Andrew,
Shaftesbury, SP7 9EP

A site visit has been arranged for Committee Members at 15:00 on the
day of the meeting.

7b 14/01417/FUL - Shrewton Steam Laundries Ltd, High Street, Shrewton,

Salisbury, SP3 4BZ (Pages 19 - 48)

Urgent Items

Any other items of business which, in the opinion of the Chairman, should be
taken as a matter of urgency

Part Il

Items during whose consideration it is recommended that the public
should be excluded because of the likelihood that exempt
information would be disclosed



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Wiltsrire Council

~—-_ Where everybody matters

SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING
HELD ON 20 MARCH 2014 AT ALAMEIN SUITE - CITY HALL, MALTHOUSE
LANE, SALISBURY, SP2 7TU.

Present:

CliIr Richard Britton, Clir Richard Clewer, Clir Brian Dalton, Clir Christopher Devine
(Vice-Chair), ClIr Jose Green, ClIr George Jeans, Clir Mike Hewitt, Clir lan McLennan,
Clir lan Tomes and ClIr Fred Westmoreland (Chairman)

26  Apologies for Absence
No apologises for absence were received.

27 Minutes
The minutes of the meeting held on 6 February 2014 were presented.
Resolved:

The minutes were approved as a correct record of the meeting and signed
by the Chairman.

28 Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations.
29 Chairman's Announcements

The Chairman raised the suggestion of an earlier start time for the future
consideration of the Committee.

30 Public Participation and Councillors' Questions
The committee noted the rules on public participation.
31 Planning Appeals

The committee received details of the appeal decisions as detailed in the
agenda.

Page 1



32

33

Members discussed the growing need for gypsy sites in the south of Wiltshire.
The Committee raised concern that the Development Plan Document (DPD)
had not been produced yet and this is resulting in planning appeals. The
Committee intends to raise the profile of this issue.

The dismissal of the appeal at Hillbilly Acre, Claredon was noted. An update by
enforcement officers is to be provided at the next meeting.

Planning Applications

13/4728/0UT - Land adjacent 1 Longhedge Cottages, Longhedge,
Salisbury, SP4 6BP

The planning officer presented the report to the Committee which
recommended approval to be granted and circulated an item of late
correspondence to be included on the council website with the agenda.

Members discussed the footpath on the parish boundary and clarification was
sought over surrounding buildings on the site. In response to Committee
questions, the planning officer confirmed that most of the surrounding buildings
were light industrial and should not cause an issue with residential
developments.

A potential restriction on the number of houses that could be constructed was
discussed. In response, it was stated by the planning officer that Members
would be agreeing to the access arrangements and the four dwellings only.

The access to the four dwellings was discussed by Members. It was stated by
the planning officer that Highways would object to any additional accesses
being added.

The level of screening required in this rural area was also raised. Concern was
raised over the visibility of the four dwellings and also the development of a
footpath that could be detrimental to the rural landscape. In response to these
concerns, was stated that hedges cannot be used to screen two storey houses.
There was little room remaining after the development of the dwellings, parking
and the access road.

The significant development of the adjoining Longhedge site was also
discussed. It was stated that the area was about to become a very urban
development and it was queried whether a restriction could be put on this
application until a roundabout has been built as part of the Longhedge
development. In response, it was stated that the decision on the current
application could not be made dependent on the accounts of a third party.

Concern was raised that if Longhedge was not developed then this would have

been four dwellings approved in the open countryside, rather than next to
another development.

Page 2



34

The local member, Clir lan McLennan, spoke in objection to the application.
At the conclusion of debate, it was,

Resolved:

That the application be refused for the following reason:

The proposed dwellings would be located on a site which is currently
located in the open countryside, and is not specifically allocated for
housing development in the South Wiltshire Core Strategy or the draft
Wiltshire Core Strategy. The adjacent A345 road onto to which the
dwellings would have a vehicular access is a very busy arterial road
between Salisbury and Amesbury, where traffic speeds are very high.

A large area of land immediately adjacent the site has been allocated for a
significant mixed development within the development plan, and planning
permission has been granted. A new highway arrangement has been
proposed as part of the adjacent development, which will help improve
highway safety and reduce traffic speeds.

However, this adjacent permission is in outline form and development has
yet to commence. Consequently, at the current time, the surrounding land
remains of a rural character, and it may be some time before the land is
actually developed, including the provision of a roundabout. As a result,
there is no certainty that the final development will resemble the layout
currently envisaged or that the future developments would not conflict.

Consequently, due to the lack of certainty that the development of the
area would occur as currently envisaged, it is considered that the scheme
would be likely to result in housing development within the open
countryside also result in additional traffic generation onto a busy arterial
road to the detriment of highway safety, contrary to policies CP6, C2, C7,
H23 & G2 of the adopted South Wiltshire Core Strategy.

13/02520/FUL - The White Hart, 1 Dean Lane, Whiteparish, Wiltshire, SP5
2RG

Public Participation
Mr Peter Stone, Whiteparish Parish Council, spoke in objection to the
application.

The planning officer presented a report to the Committee which recommended
that the application be approved.

Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the officer.

Concern was raised over the narrow access to the site and failure to meet
parking standards and potential worsening congestion.

Page 3



It was stated that parking standards should be enforced and that parking on the
road would not be suitable.

Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the
Committee, as detailed above

The Local member, ClIr Richard Britton, then spoke in support of the
application.

A debate followed where clarification over the speed limit in the area was
sought, and there was discussion over the suitability of parking on the road and
the need for appropriate parking standards to be enforced.

Resolved:
That the application be approved subject to the following conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until
the first five metres of the access to the west of the dwelling, measured
from the edge of the carriageway, has been consolidated and surfaced
(not loose stone or gravel). The access shall be maintained as such
thereafter.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

3. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in
accordance with the following approved plans: parking layout, site
location plan, design and access statement, DRG No. 13061/1, 13061/2
received 6/8/14.

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper
planning.

Cllr Richard Britton requested that his vote against the motion to approve
permission be recorded.

As he had arrived late to the meeting and missed part of the report process, CllIr
George Jeans took no part in the debate or vote on the item.

Page 4



35 Urgent Iltems

There were no urgent items

(Duration of meeting: 5.00 -6.10 pm)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is David Parkes of Democratic
Services, direct line (01225) 718220, e-mail david.parkes@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Agenda Iltem 6
APPEALS

Appeal Decisions

Application
Application Site Appeal | Delegated/ | Appeal Overturn | Costs
Number Type Committee | Decision
13/01159/FUL Parcel of land | WR DEL DISMISSED
to South of
B3089 between
Teffont and
Dinton
13/03615/FUL Land at Duck WR DEL DISMISSED
Lane,
Laverstock
S$/2013/255/LBC | Park Cottage, H DEL ALLOWED
Milton, East
Knoyle
Outstanding Appeals
Application Site Appeal Type | Application | Overturn
Number Delegated/
Committee
S/2012/1566 Penruddocke Arms, Dinton | WR NON DET
S/2012/1613/FUL | Ridge Side, The Ridge, WR DEL
Woodfalls, Salisbury
13/01691/ADV Fabric Land, 45-49 WR DEL
Catherine Street, Salisbury
13/03164/FUL 9 Hilltop Close, Shrewton WR DEL
13/03367/FUL 88 Ridge, Chilmark HH Comm YES
13/05892/FUL 18c Firs Road, Firsdown HH Comm YES
New Appeals
Application Site Appeal Type | Application Overturn
Number Delegated/
Committee
13/01493/FUL 44 Fisherton WR DEL
Street,
Salisbury

WR Written Representations

HH Fastrack Householder Appeal
H Hearing

LI Local Inquiry

ENF Enforcement Appeal

31st March 2014

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Agenda Iltem 7a

REPORT TO THE AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE Report No. 2
Date of Meeting 10 April 2014
Application Number | 14/01088/FUL
Site Address Hersanmine
Scotts Hill
Donhead St. Andrew
Shaftesbury
SP7 9EP
Proposal Demolition of the existing cottage and erect a replacement

3 bed dwelling with associated parking facilities and
detached garage

Applicant Mr Peter Lucas

Town/Parish Council | DONHEAD ST ANDREW

Electoral Division TISBURY

Grid Ref 391883 125466
Type of application Full Planning
Case Officer Warren Simmonds

Reason for the application being considered by Committee

The application was called-in to the Committee by the Local Member, Clir Tony
Deane, on grounds of:

Scale of development

Visual impact on surrounding area

Relationship to adjoining properties

Design — bulk, height, general appearance

Concerns in respect of the impact of living accommodation at first floor level
on the amenity of neighbours (overlooking)

1. Purpose of Report

To consider the above application and the recommendation of the Area
Development Manager that planning permission be APPROVED subject to
Conditions.

2. Report Summary

The main issues for consideration are:

e The principle of the proposed development
Scale, design & materials
Impact on the character of the local area
Impact on the surrounding landscape
Impact on the amenity of neighbours
Protected species
Highway considerations

Page 9



Forty three third party representations were received, thirty three were in support of
the application and ten were not in support.

Grounds for not supporting the proposed development included excessive scale,
design too modern, inappropriate materials, and living space on first floor leading to
overlooking of neighbours.

Donhead St Andrew parish council objects to the proposal on grounds of excessive
scale, excessive fenestration and consequent overlooking of neighbours, and the
use of inappropriate external materials.

3. Site Description

The application relates to the site of an existing two storey dwellinghouse of natural
stone elevations under a slate roof, located within the rural settlement of Donhead St
Andrew. The site as existing comprises of the dwellinghouse with an assortment of
attached outbuildings extending approximately 21 metres to the west and is set
within a modest residential curtilage bounded by New Road and Scotts Hill on the
east and north sides respectively. To the west and south is open land (a field). The
application site is not within a designated housing policy boundary or conservation
area, but is within the AONB.

4. The Proposal

The application proposes the demolition of the existing cottage and all outbuildings,
and the construction of a replacement two storey dwelling with detached single
storey double garage and associated amendments to the existing access.

5. Planning Policy

Local plan policies C2, C5, C12, G2, D2, D3, H30

NPPF, NPPG

Donhead St Andrew Village Design Statement

6. Consultations

Wiltshire Council Highways
No Highway objection, subject to conditions

Wiltshire Council Ecologist
No response received

AONB Group
No response received

Wiltshire Council Conservation Officer
No objections, comment re materials and detailing

Wiltshire Council Environmental Protection
No objection, subject to conditions

Page 10



Wiltshire Council Housing Officer
No requirement for an affordable housing contribution

Donhead St Andrew Parish Council
Object on grounds of excessive scale, excessive fenestration and consequent
overlooking of neighbours, inappropriate materials

7. Publicity

The application was publicised via a site notice and neighbour notification letters.
Upon the receipt of amended plans (dated 11.03.14), neighbours and the parish
council were re-notified and given a further opportunity to comment.

Forty three third party representations were received, thirty three were in support of
the application, and ten were not in support. Grounds for not supporting the
proposed development included excessive scale, design too modern, inappropriate
materials, and living space on first floor leading to overlooking of neighbours.

8. Planning Considerations

The existing dwelling known as ‘Hersanmine’ is not located within a housing policy
boundary and therefore constitutes a detached, two storey dwellinghouse in the
countryside whereby local plan policy H30 (Replacement dwellings in the
countryside) applies.

8.1 Condition of the existing cottage

The applicant has provided an appraisal of the condition of the existing cottage

(ITL Associates - Chartered Surveyors, dated 30.04.13) which concludes the existing
building has deteriorated to a point at which it is no longer fit for human habitation,
and the level of expenditure necessary to bring the building back to habitable
standards would be disproportionate to the nature of the resulting accommodation.

8.2 Scale, design & materials

The proposed replacement dwelling has a two storey rectangular form, under a
simple pitched roof. The proposed replacement dwelling proposes the use of natural
local greensand stone (reused from the existing cottage) for the ground floor,
horizontal untreated oak boarding for the first floor, under a slate roof (slate reused
from the existing cottage, together with matching reclaimed slate where necessary).

The proposed garage is of modest single storey form and is to be constructed of
reused natural greensand stone, also under a reused/reclaimed slate roof.

The proposed new dwelling is set over the footprint of the existing property and,
whilst in isolation has a greater mass than the cottage it replaces, the proposal in
effect constitutes a consolidation and amalgamation of the form of the existing house
and attached assortment of outbuildings, into a single rectangular form with the
detached single storey double garage located towards the western end of the
site/curtilage.

Page 11



In these respects the proposal is considered compatible in terms of its scale, design
and character, and proposes the use of reused and complementary materials
appropriate to the rural locality.

8.3 Impact on the existing character of the local and wider surrounding area

The Donhead St Andrew Village Design Statement (VDS) forms a material planning
consideration in the determination of proposal for development. The VDS provides a
variety of guidance, including that new development should conform with the present
linear settlement pattern within the settlement, and that all new houses and
outbuildings should respect the existing scale and setting within the village. The VDS
goes on to state that new and replacement houses cannot be expected to have
slavishly followed what went before, but rather reflect the style and materials of the
time, taking account of the need for sustainability in materials and use. Greensand
stone walls are identified within the VDS as being the local building stone, however
there is no single village vernacular and the considerable variety of building materials
used for walls and external elevations is said to contribute towards the diverse
character of the village. Slate for roofs is identified as being part of the local
vernacular.

The existing significant trees at the east and western ends of the application site are
to be retained, and a replacement hedge is proposed for the roadside front boundary
along Scotts Hill.

Taking into consideration the simple rectangular form of the proposed replacement
dwellinghouse, its use of materials which reflect the local vernacular and existing
character of the village, and the position of the proposed dwelling which preserves
the present linear settlement pattern, the proposal is considered accordant with the
Donhead St Andrew Village Design Statement and would integrate satisfactorily in
relation to other properties and the overall landscape framework.

8.4 Impact on neighbour amenity

The application is for a replacement two storey dwellinghouse over the approximate
footprint of the existing two storey dwellinghouse and attached outbuildings.

It is accepted the interior design/layout of the proposed reverses the existing
arrangement of living accommodation, providing bedrooms on the ground floor and
the majority of the living accommodation at first floor level. Whilst the ‘focus’ of views
from the proposed first floor living area is undoubtedly the open fields to the south,
concerns have been raised that the proposed windows within the first floor north
facing elevation could result in the undue overlooking of the existing pair of
bungalows on the opposite (north) side of Scotts Hill. To address these concerns the
applicant has submitted revised plans which reduce the north facing first floor
fenestration, and it is further recommended (by Condition) that all first floor glazing
within the north facing elevation be obscure glazed.

At the first floor rear (south) of the proposed dwelling is a first floor balcony with

access from the first floor living area and external steps to the ground floor terrace
below. By reason of the location of the proposed balcony area at the rear of the

Page 12



house, taken together with the distance to, and general relationship with
neighbouring dwellings, and the presence of substantial natural screening afforded
by trees on both the eastern and western ends of the application site, it is considered
the proposed rear balcony would not result in the undue overlooking of neighbouring
properties.

8.5 Highway safety

The application proposes the widening and improvement of the existing access from
Scotts Hill, together with enhanced visibility splays and improved provision for off-
street parking within the site.

The proposal has been considered by the Council’s Highways Engineer, who raises
no objection subject to Conditions in respect of the proposed access and surface
water drainage.

8.6 Protected species

The application is accompanied by a protected species survey report (Chalkhill
environmental consultants, September 2012). The report concludes that bats are a
material planning consideration for the proposed development, and bat mitigation
measures are recommended, including the provision of accommodation for crevice
roosting bats within the roof of the new garage building.

9. Conclusion

The proposed development is considered accordant with the provisions of the
Development Plan, and in particular Policies C2, G2, D2, D3, C5, C12 & H30 of the
saved policies of the adopted Salisbury District Local Plan (constituting saved
policies listed in Appendix C, of the adopted South Wiltshire Core Strategy), and the
aims and objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework, insofar as the
proposed development is considered compatible in terms of its scale, design and
materials and in respect of the existing character of the immediate and wider
surrounding locality. Subject to a Condition requiring the first floor north facing
windows to be glazed with obscured glass, the proposal would not adversely affect
the amenity of neighbours.

Recommendation
Approve, subject to the following conditions:

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:

Page 13



Drawing number 10 dated 11.03.14, as deposited with the local planning
authority on 13.03.14, and

Drawing number 11 dated 11.03.14, as deposited with the local planning
authority on 13.03.14, and

Drawing number 12 dated 11.03.14, as deposited with the local planning
authority on 13.03.14.

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
No construction or demolition work shall take place on Sundays or Public
Holidays or outside the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 on weekdays and 08:00 to
13:00 on Saturdays. No burning of waste shall take place on the site during
the construction phase of the development.

REASON: In the interests of neighbouring amenities

Before the development hereby permitted is first occupied the first floor
windows in the north facing (front) elevation shall be glazed with obscure
glass only and the windows shall be permanently maintained with obscure
glazing in perpetuity.

REASON: In the interests of residential amenity and privacy.

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in strict accordance
with the bat mitigation measures detailed within the submitted bat survey
(Chalkhill environmental consultants, Sept 2012) and the submitted new bat
roost provision details (Chalkhill environmental consultants, January 2014).

Reason: To ensure that appropriate mitigation is provided in respect of
potential impacts on protected species

The gradient of the access way shall not at any point be steeper than 1 in 15
for a distance of 5 metres from its junction with the public highway.

REASON: In the interests of highway safety.

The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the first five
metres of the access, measured from the edge of carriageway, has been
consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or gravel). The access shall be
maintained as such thereafter.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

The access shall remain ungated.

Reason: in the interests of highway safety.

No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the discharge of
surface water from the site (including surface water from the

Page 14



10

access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
development shall not be first occupied until surface water drainage has been
constructed in accordance with the approved scheme.

Reason: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained.

No development shall commence on site until a visibility splay has been
provided at the vehicular access to the site between the edge of carriageway
and a line extending from a point 2.4 metres back from the edge of the
carriageway, measured along the centre line of the access, to a point on the
edge of the carriageway 15 metres to the east, with nothing over 1.0 metre in
height above the adjoining carriageway level being planted, erected or
maintained in front (highway side) of the splay line. Nothing over 1 metre in
height above the adjoining carriageway level shall be planted, erected or
maintained within the area between the edge of the carriageway and the
northern side of the new garage.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



14/01088/FUL — Hersanmine, Scotts Hill, Donhead St. Andrew, SP7 9EP

1o5.0m) /%7
£B
Thorn
Ten Aure Comse PieOsk Lodge
q < &
3 £ o
Pond g )
& Dorhead
Wil FBS” Veatmans g
fesues & Park End
& Ameryst
o
Lo Seotts Hil Hase
o~
A \ .
¥ -
fm . Erickyard Cor
rickyard Gorner
2 §
&
@
8
Bl
@
ks
£
Cattage
4 c & 4
B 5 -
: a
9
=
Dorhead ’
il | ) F& Yeatmars o
. g y Park End
2 Amethyst
A Scotts Hil House
\ B
\ = =
\ \ &
\
- |
f ~
<
z ~J
&

Brickyard Corner

Page 17




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Agenda Iltem 7b

REPORT TO THE AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE Report No. 1
Date of Meeting 10 April 2014
Application Number | 14/01417/FUL
Site Address Shrewton Steam Laundries Ltd
High Street
Shrewton
Salisbury
SP3 4BZ
Proposal Demolition of existing laundry buildings; erection of 9

dwellings (2 x 1-bed; 5 x 2-bed; 2 x 3 bed); alterations to
accesses; landscaping and associated parking

Applicant Rattue & Griffiths Ltd

Town/Parish Council | ORCHESTON

Electoral Division TILL AND WYLYE VALLEY

Grid Ref 406970 144456
Type of application Full Planning
Case Officer Lucy Minting

Reason for the application being considered by Committee

The Local Member, Councillor lan West, has called in the application for the following
reasons:

| believe it is now time for members to consider the two competing issues of trying to
build new houses on Brownfield land but also trying not to include the risk of flooding
The scale of development

Visual impact upon the surrounding area

Relationship to adjoining properties

Environmental/highway impact

There is considerable local public interest in this application

1. Purpose of Report

To consider the above application and the recommendation of the Area Development
Manager that planning permission be REFUSED with reasons.

2. Report Summary

The main considerations which are considered to be material in the determination of
this application are listed below:

1. Previous Committee Decision in relation to flood risk and whether the proposal

would represent an acceptable form of development with particular regard to its flood
zone location and the provisions of the NPPF

Page 19



2. Whether the development will exacerbate flood risk or result in a worsening of
flood depths or flooding to property or infrastructure — Previous Committee Decision
and consultation response from the Environment Agency

Previous Committee Decision in relation to loss of employment

Scale, design, residential amenity/living conditions

Highway safety

Contaminated land

Protected species

Impact to SSSI/SAC

S016 Contributions (Affordable Housing — SWCS Core Policy 3, Recreational
open space — saved policy R2 of Salisbury District Local Plan)

10. Archaeology

11. Other issues - Housing Land Supply, Viability

©ON® O AW

The application has generated Support from Shrewton Parish Council; 5
representations of objection and 2 representations commenting on the application.

3. Site Description

The site is located within the village of Shrewton, designated in the Local Plan as an
Area of Special Archaeological Significance, Housing Policy Boundary and special
landscape area.

The area is surrounded by residential dwellings to the south, west and north and The
George Inn to the east.

The site is bounded to the east by the High Street, to the north by The Hollow leading
to Elston Lane, and to the south are the residential curtilages of Winterbourne House
and The Old Bakery.

The River Till, a main river and tributary of the River Avon designated as a SSSI
being part of the River Avon Special Area of Conservation (SAC) forms the western
boundary of the site.

The site lies within flood zones 2 and 3. The Environment Agency is responsible for
designating flood zones. There are 3 zones in total across the country. Flood Zone
3 shows the area that could be affected by flooding from a river by a flood that has a
1% (1 in 100) or greater chance of happening each year. Flood Zone 2 includes
outlying areas likely to be affected by a major flood, with up to a 0.1% (1 in 1000)
chance of occurring each year. Flood Zone 1 shows the areas where flooding from
rivers and the sea is very unlikely and where there is less than a 0.1% chance of
flooding occurring each year. The majoring of England and Wales falls within this
area.

The site is vacant having previously been used as Shrewton Steam Laundry
business. The buildings are in a state of disrepair and one of the 2 storey cob
buildings on the corner of the site between High Street and The Hollow has
collapsed.

Page 20



4. Planning History

Application ref| Proposal Decision

13/05963/FUL|Demolition of existing laundry buildings; erection | Refused

of 9 dwellings (2 x 1-bed; 5 x 2-bed; 2 x 3 bed); 13/01/2014
alterations to accesses; landscaping and
S/2013/0406 Demolition of existing laundry buildings; erection | Approved
of three four-bedroom dwellings with associated | 05/09/2013
parking, access and landscaping works
S/2012/1297 | Demolition of existing laundry buildings; Refused
erection of three four-bedroom dwellings with 07/11/2012
associated parking, access and landscaping
S/2011/1620 | Demolition of existing laundry buildings, erection | Refused

of 8 x dwellings (3 x 2 bed and 5 x 3 bed), 30/01/2012
alterations to access, landscaping and

5. The Proposal

The site has been subject to a number of recent planning applications to demolish
and redevelop the site for residential purposes.

A previous planning application (S/2013/0406) for three detached dwellings on the
site was recommended for refusal on flooding grounds and loss of employment but
was called into the Southern Area Planning Committee and was approved by
Members of the Planning Committee.

The approved scheme followed 2 previous refused applications for residential
redevelopment.

Planning permission was then refused using delegated powers (with agreement of
the Local Member) for 9 residential dwellings under planning application reference
13/05963/FUL (2 X1 bedroom units, 5 X2 bedroom units and 2x3 bedroom units) for
the following reasons:

(1) The proposed development by reason of the number of dwellings proposed; the
bulk/massing (magnitude in three dimensions), scale (size in relation to
surroundings) and design of the development in relation to existing buildings, and the
layout and open siting and extent of vehicular hardstanding and car parking
constitutes a poor design of development leading to a proposal that amounts to an
overdevelopment of the site that is vehicle dominated. The proposal will have an
adverse visual impact within the street scene; to the detriment of the character and
appearance of the area which has a rural context and where the primary routes
through the village are characterised by a fragmented form and grouping of
traditional small scale buildings. By reason of the above, the development will also
create a poor living environment to the detriment of the amenities of the future
occupants of the site. Overall, the development is contrary to saved policies G1, G2,
D2, H16 and C6 of the Adopted Salisbury District Local Plan and included in the
saved policies listed in Appendix C, of the South Wiltshire Core Strategy, Objective

Page 21



16 of the Council's design guide "Creating Places”, draft policy 57 of the Wiltshire
Core Strategy and guidance within the NPPF.

(2) The proposed scheme provides insufficient on-site bin storage facilities for bins to
stand whilst waiting to be emptied, which could lead to obstruction of the local
highway network, impede, endanger and inconvenience all road users to the
detriment of highway safety, contrary to saved policy G2 of the Adopted Salisbury
District Local Plan and included in the saved policies listed in Appendix C, of the
Adopted South Wiltshire Core Strategy and the Wiltshire Local Transport Plan 2011-
2026.

(3) The proposed layout does not include separate pedestrian facilities along The
Hollow site frontage, and the development and proposed layout (including parking
spaces to the terrace of three dwellings and the single visitor parking space being
located remote from the dwellings served in the separate parking area to the west of
the site) is likely to generate an increase in pedestrian traffic on a highway lacking
adequate footways with additional hazards to all users of the road, contrary to saved
policy G2 of the Adopted Salisbury District Local Plan and included in the saved
policies listed in Appendix C, of the Adopted South Wiltshire Core Strategy and the
Wiltshire Local Transport Plan 2011-2026.

(4) The proposed scheme provides insufficient and inadequate on-site parking
facilities with only one off-street visitors parking space for the scheme as a whole
and all the parking spaces accessed from The Hollow are located within the flood
flow path/floodplain storage area (floodzones 2 and 3), which could potentially flood
and could lead to parking on the local highway network, which would impede,
endanger and inconvenience all road users to the detriment of highway safety,
contrary to saved policy G2 of the Adopted Salisbury District Local Plan and included
in the saved policies listed in Appendix C, of the Adopted South Wiltshire Core
Strategy and the Wiltshire Local Transport Plan 2011-2026.

This is a resubmission of this refused scheme for 9 residential dwellings on the site
(2 x 1 bedroom units, 5 X 2 bedroom units and 2 x 3 bedroom units).

The amendments include additional and rearrangement of the bin stores/collection
points, adding a 1.5m wide footpath to The Hollow frontage, and a change to the
angle of the driveways to plots 5, 6 and 7.

6. Planning Policy

Adopted Salisbury District Local Plan saved policies, including the following
saved policies listed in Appendix C, of the Adopted South Wiltshire Core

Strategy:

G1 - Sustainable development

G2 - General Criteria for development
D2 — Infill development

H16 — Housing Policy Boundaries

R2 — Open space provision

TR11 — Off street parking spaces

Page 22



TR14 — Cycle parking

C6 — Special landscape area

C18 — Development sites bounded by watercourses
CN21 — Archaeology

C12 — Protected species

Adopted South Wiltshire Core Strateqy:

Core Policy 1 — The Settlement Strategy and distribution of growth in south
Wiltshire

Core Policy 2 — Strategic Allocations

Core Policy 3 — Meeting Local Needs for Affordable Housing

Core Policy 5 — Employment Land

Wiltshire Local Transport Plan 2011-2026

Car parking strategy

Emerging Wiltshire Core Strateqy:

Core Policy 2 — Delivery Strategy

Core Policy 57 - Ensuring high quality design and place shaping

EXAM/84 Topic Paper 15 addendum — Housing Requirement Technical Paper
28/02/2014

EXAM/91Housing Land Supply Statement Base Date April 2014

Government Guidance:

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) March 2012
Planning Practice Guidance

7. Consultations

Shrewton Parish Council

Support - Councillors observed that it was still too many houses for the site but
agreed to support the application as it was necessary for new homes to be built.
Councillors would like the opportunity to name the new development ‘Carrier’'s Court’
after the public house which had once been on site.

Environment Agency

No objections subject to conditions requested under previous planning application
13/05963/FUL (removed permitted development rights for outbuildings and
enclosures, no raising of ground levels within the flood flow route, floor levels,
surface water drainage, water efficiency).

Page 23



Highways

No objections subject to conditions (scheme for the provision of the paved footway
across the site frontage to be approved, discharge of surface water from the site, the
first 5m of each vehicular access to be consolidated and surfaced, no occupation
until each vehicular access, turning area and parking spaces have been provided)
and note that it is anticipated that the paved footway would be adopted by the
council via a legal agreement.

Archaeology

No objections subject to condition. The site is of archaeological interest lying on the
edge of the medieval settlement. Recommend condition for a programme of
archaeological works to be carried out as part of any development (recording of
existing buildings and archaeological watching brief).

Public Protection

No objections subject to conditions (contaminated land investigation; limiting hours of
demolition and construction and informative advising that no burning of waste should
take place on site)

New Housing Team

No objection — A viability assessment has shown that it would not be viable to take
an affordable housing contribution as a condition of any planning consent granted.

Wessex Water
No objections. New water supply and waste water connections will be required from
Wessex Water.

Wiltshire & Swindon Biological Records Centre

Screening comments
River Till SSSI (River Avon SAC) within 20m
Water vole recorded within 55m (2011)

Ecology

This application for 9 dwellings doesn’t involve changes that are different to the
previously approved scheme (S/2013/0406) as far as ecology is concerned.

No objections subject to conditions 4, 7 and 8 of S/2013/0406 being transferred
across, in order to make any permission legally compliant with the Habitats
Regulations (construction method statement & contaminated land investigation) and
to provide nesting opportunities for birds and roosting opportunities for bats.

Natural England

No objections

Page 24



Refer to Habitats Regulations and that provided the development is connected to
Wessex Water sewer within current permit headroom then a likely significant effect
due to phosphate impacts can be screened out.

Recommend Environment Agency’s pollution prevention guidelines to address
potential impacts such as sedimentation or other forms of contamination from
construction activities

Natural England standing advice on protected species is relevant.

Features should be incorporated for roosting opportunities for bats or the installation
of bird next boxes for biodiversity enhancement in accordance with paragraph 118 of
NPPF and Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act (2006)

Wiltshire Fire & Rescue Service

Comments relating to fire safety measures which could be included as an
informative. Reference to developer contributions for hydrants and water supplied for
fire fighting and additional or amended fire and rescue service infrastructure - which
is not an adopted policy.

Urban Design

Object, summarised:
The proposed revisions which include:

Adjustment of the driveways to show these at ninety degrees to the highway for plots
5, 6 and 7; Extension of the proposed pavement shown alongside ‘The Hollow’; For
dwellings 1 to 4 individual bin stores within their enclosed rear gardens, and
individual bin collection points are added; For dwellings 5 to 9 inclusive the shared
bin collection stand has been moved away from the road edge, enlarged and
enclosed. This is now shown sited in the return between dwellings 7 and 8/9.

Do not address the fundamental concerns and the proposals do not meet:

-The South Wiltshire Core Strategy saved Salisbury District Council Design Policy
D2(Infill Development): The proposals do not respect or enhance the character of
appearance of the area in terms of: (i) heights and massing of adjoining buildings, (ii)
the architectural characteristics of adjoining buildings, and (iii) the complexity and
richness of materials and form of existing buildings.

-Draft Wiltshire Core Strategy Core Policy 57: the proposal does not represent a high
quality of design, drawing on the local context or making a positive contribution to its
character.

-Objective 16 of ‘Creating Places’ Supplementary planning document — the design
takes little account of its local setting.

- Question whether the proposals meet South Wiltshire Core Strategy saved

Salisbury District Council Policy G2 in terms of parking, bin storage and accessibility
concerns.

Page 25



| conclude this proposal is an overdevelopment of the site and does not represent a
high quality of design; the standardized housing design approach does not respect
or enhance the intrinsic local context and character given the prominent setting of
the site and its proximity to the historic core of the village.

The particularly contextual and constrained nature of this site requires a bespoke
design approach and crafted design for a locally distinctive scheme to emerge. My
sketch below indicates one possible design approach to accommodating a significant
number of residential properties from which an appropriate scheme could be
developed to suitably address my concerns with the layout and design.

i IS B
b e s e i

'f‘f Bad 5 zgmc /,W,L
Z2nd 2 Zor 2 Lo bame
G/ T el bea Hats or | x Zhed Lioge

’fb‘h{ & 0/7 dch-m;g e ol L
up 181273, BT

Page 26



-

7S paller mofs
S [chiaJ( 'Seale o,%'
Ahe Old J@akt// .

O gie.n B

8. Publicity

This application was advertised through the use of a site notice, press notice and
letters of consultation.

5 third party representations of objection, summarised as follows:

Agree with Parish Council that site has deteriorated to a dangerous and
unacceptable state, and site needs to be developed, but planning decision
should be based on what is deemed appropriate and not based on existing
site conditions

Has not properly addressed previous refusal reasons

Agree that the new footpath and waste storage facility addresses reasons 2
and 3 of planning refusal but not refusal reasons 1 or 4

Overdevelopment of site — number of dwellings, bulk/massing, scale and
design out of keeping, vehicle hard standing and parking facilities are poorly
designed and site is vehicle dominated

Proposed dwellings are not in keeping with the character and appearance of
surroundings

More appropriate sized dwellings needed

Page 27



Local roads are not lightly trafficked - already congested with resident,
business parking and commuting cars using the roads as a short cut from the
A303. Increased traffic following new Stonehenge Visitor Centre and closure
of A344 can be verified by STAG (Stonehenge Traffic Action Group). This
has not been taken into consideration

Site is on a dangerous bend

Conflict with large vehicles including buses, coaches, farm traffic and lorries
Safety impact to highway, pedestrian and all users of highway including
children who access the local BMX track and recreation ground - Each unit
will require parking for 2/3 cars and at least 18-27 spaces. 16 car parking
spaces proposed is insufficient leading to parking on nearby roads and adding
to congestion and obstruction of highway. Parking to properties 5, 6 & 7 are
not practical require reversing in or out of onto narrow section of road with bus
stop opposite and blind corners in both directions.

1 visitor parking space insufficient

Inadequate bin storage and collection points — lead to obstruction of
pavement for 2 week cycle of refuse collection and possible
highway/pedestrian safety impact

Bulk, style and design of east block units with archway is out of keeping with
all other buildings in the village

Proposal indicates gardens and car parking spaces in the flood zone contour
and house just outside - recent inclement weather has shown how important it
is not to build close to the river

Documents submitted with application in relation to flooding have not been
updated to the current proposal for nine dwellings and relate to the approved
3 unit scheme instead.

Effluent from 9 dwellings would exacerbate problems relating to flooding and
sewerage in the vicinity of the site during recent adverse weather

Would support less units with more parking and further away from the flood
zone contour.

Concerns about proximity of unit 4 to cob wall of adjacent dwelling - potential
structural impact and sufficient space for maintenance — ADM Note that the
distance from the side wall of unit 4 and The Old Bakery is marked on the
proposed site layout plans at 0.9m on both this scheme and the previously
approved scheme for 3 dwellings and that potential impact to cob walls are
civil issues although may be covered under the Party Wall Act and Building
Regulations.

Preference for approved 3 unit scheme

2 third party representations of comment summarised:

Pedestrian safety improved by provision of footpath in The Hollow

No improvement to safety exiting onto High Street from the proposed arch
where sight lines poor

The 4 Hollow exits will be hazardous to pedestrians and motorists, bus stop,
horse riders

No attempt to meet refusal points 1 or 4 concerning overdevelopment and
vehicular concerns

Deterioration of current structures - something needs to be done

Page 28



e Need to ensure properties 1 and 2 enter and exit via High Street — note
railings are proposed preventing access onto The Hollow

e Properties 5-9 very close to flood zone contour

e Junction to Elston Lane has been flooded and was closed to traffic

e Suggest fewer dwellings built on the site

CPRE - The proposal would result in too cramped a development, out of character
with that part of the village and also including recent development. It is also overly
dominant in that location

9. Planning Considerations
9.1 Previous Committee Decision in relation to flood risk and whether the proposal

would represent an acceptable form of development with particular reqgard to its flood
zone location and the provisions of the NPPF

The entire site is located within flood zones 2 and 3 and the National Planning Policy
Framework, Planning Practice Guidance and the adopted South Wiltshire Core
Strategy (SWCS) are clear that sites within flood zones 2 and 3 should not be
developed with residential schemes ahead of all other sites in flood zone 1 (which
has to be demonstrated through a Sequential Test).

~ lards J = i sHun@al Lo
|

' , s i ll,______‘_-_-_‘_‘: = ‘_‘_“_‘__]_‘_‘i = =g
brool L________-_ ! J[ ] I
jouse), |t ===l , L
; - \ | Z

l

- Flood Malp - Flood Zann?!
m) Flood Map - Flood Zone 2

The local planning authority applies the sequential test. As the local planning
authority has identified a readily available and deliverable 5 year supply of housing
land in Flood Zone 1, there is no need consider sites outside of Flood Zone 1. A
sequential test has been submitted with the application but this has only considered
sites put forward in the Parish of Shrewton in the Strategic Housing Land Availability
Assessment (SHLAA) and not the whole of the local planning authority area with no
special justification to reduce the geographical area of search.

Page 29



However, as the Members of the Committee resolved to grant planning permission
for the 3 unit scheme; the principle of residential development on the site has been
accepted by the Council and it would be unreasonable to refuse this application on
these grounds.

9.2 Whether the development will exacerbate flood risk or result in a worsening of
flood depths or flooding to property or infrastructure

In addition to needing to pass the sequential test, the development needs a flood risk
assessment to demonstrate that the development would be safe for its lifetime taking
into account the vulnerability of its users, without increasing flood risk elsewhere and
where possible reducing flood risk overall.

The approved scheme for 3 detached dwellings proposes a flow path and floodplain
storage area, which raises the land where the dwellings will be placed to 80.9mAOD
(above the 1in 100 year plus 20% for climate change flood level) and proposes to
lower an area adjacent to the River Till to reinstate a naturally occurring flow path
and floodplain storage area (shown by the dashed blue line on the plan below within
the gardens of plot 1 and 3).

oo e FLOOD ZONE CONTOUR - Flood Flow
e _Path/storage area to west of the blue line

Extract from layout plan for approved scheme (S/2013/0406)

The Environment Agency objected to this as the flood flow path could not be
maintained over the lifetime of the development which could result in a reduction of
any intended gains shown by the flood modelling and in the worst case scenario
flood risk could be increased to the site and elsewhere compared to the existing
scenario.

Page 30



However, Members of the Committee resolved to grant planning permission for the 3
unit scheme contrary to the recommendation for refusal.

This application also proposes the same flow path and floodplain storage area, with
the footprint of the dwellings placed to 80.9mAOD (above the 1 in 100 year plus 20%
for climate change flood level):

FLOOD ZONE CONTOUR - Flood flow
path/storage area to west of the blue line

Extract from proposed layout plan

The Environment Agency has now raised no objections to the scheme subject to
conditions. They have explained the factors that enabled them to remove their
objection as follows:

‘We have noted the content of Conditions 11 and 12 that were applied by the LPA on
the decision notice for the planning application S/2013/0406. These conditions make
specific requirements over placing obstructions within the overland flood route and
also importantly these conditions tie the development to the approved plans. We
have requested that these conditions be applied to any decision notice for the
current planning application.

The submitted site plan show predominantly communally owned areas (car parking
and garden) and only privately owned driveways rather than gardens within the
overland flood zone. The communal areas are unlikely to be raised or significantly
altered or obstructed in the future. Private driveways are an improvement over
private gardens within the overland flood route since there is less likelihood that
these areas will be raised or obstructed in the future. Further, there is also no
fencing, walls, fences, gates, or other like obstruction or building shown on the site
plan to which the development will be tied.

Page 31



We have also requested a condition to ensure no raising of ground levels above the
design level of 80.30mAOD.

Whilst there remains the possibility of deminimus objects being placed within the
privately owned driveway areas, with more certainty over the control of ground levels
and the more significant obstructions (fencing, walling, sheds, gates etc.) we
consider that on balance it would be unreasonable to object to this revised scheme.’

9.3 Previous Committee Decision in relation to loss of employment

The approved scheme was also recommended for refusal on the grounds that the
loss of employment remained an issue whilst the principle of residential use in a
flood zone was unacceptable. The previous committee report explained that as the
site was considered unsuitable for residential use then the local planning authority
would expect continued use for employment purposes unless it was fully
demonstrated through marketing and the site has not been marketed since
November 2010.

However, as the Members of the Committee resolved to grant planning permission
for the residential redevelopment and agreed the principle of residential use in a
flood zone, in this particular case, it would be unreasonable to refuse this application
on these grounds.

9.4 Scale, design, residential amenity/living conditions

Policy G1 of the Adopted Local Plan promotes the efficient use of land but this must
be balanced against the need to protect and improve the established character and
local distinctiveness of existing residential areas and development should not be
allowed if it would be out of character or harmful to its locality.

The requirements of policy G2 include that all development must conform to the
general criteria of policy G2 and other Local Plan policies, in particular those relating
to design.

Policy D2 states that proposals for street and infill development will be permitted
where the proposals respect or enhance the character of appearance of an area
including the building line, scale of the area, heights and massing of adjoining
buildings and the characteristic building plot widths.

Objective 16 of the Councils Design Guide states (page 67) also refers to the need
for new development proposals to exhibit ‘How the new dwelling(s) will relate to the
context and to each other to create a particular place’.

The Council’s urban designer has provided detailed comments’ concluding that the
proposed scheme is an overdevelopment of the site and does not represent a high
quality of design which does not respect or enhance the intrinsic local context and

character.

The design and access statement accompanying this application refers to the

existing amount of built form on the site (69% of the total site area) and as the
footprint of the proposed 9 unit scheme is less at 27.2% of the total site area, the

Page 32



agent does not consider that concerns regarding overdevelopment can be credible,
and that the existing built form immediately abuts the frontage along the length of
The Hollow whilst in contrast the proposed scheme would introduce open-fronted
elements which the agent considers are characteristic of the locality.

The urban designer explains that the primary routes through the village are
characterised by a fragmented form and grouping of traditional small scale buildings
and that the proposed terrace of 4 dwellings across the High Street frontage in
particular with continuous eaves and ridge height introduces a significantly larger
block in this streetscape with its single facade and roof, repetitive common facade
elements and single wall finish is considered to present an overall bulk and
monolithic appearance that will be overly dominant within the street scene and out of
character and scale with neighbouring buildings.

This is appreciable by comparing the existing roofscape and urban form plan of the
buildings along the primary routes. The existing High Street frontage is of a lesser
scale, facade height and roof volume and has a significantly wide opening between
two separate buildings with that alongside The Old Bakery to the south which is of a
much lower height.

The approved 3 dwelling scheme (shown outlined in blue on the High Street
elevation extract below) is considered to suitably address this with a more varied
building frontage; roof form and height with comparably smaller roof spans in
keeping with the scale of adjacent buildings.

Approved planning ; Existing buildings
consent shown blue | shown red dashed

\(KERY ,
Plot 4 | Plot 3 Plot 2 Plot 1

8691m  87.04m

FFL 80.90 FFL 80.90

High Street — street scene elevation extract

The urban designer advises that the rigid nature of the proposed layout, the
repetitive form and detailing of the dwellings, along with the open siting and
concentration of the proposed residents car parking imposes a distinctly suburban
estate solution to the site not characteristic of the village vernacular and will present
a visually poor setting which will dominate the site to the detriment of the character
and appearance of the street scene.

Page 33



The urban designer goes onto explain that in particular the internal return corner
joining the two blocks forming dwellings 5 to 8 inclusive will appear particularly
awkward in form and of secondary importance at this prominent junction. This will
represent a poor quality of design in this setting in contrast to the simple stature
conveyed by the existing ‘villa’ like building it replaces which makes a positive
backdrop to the road approach from the north:

The extent of vehicle hardstanding and parked cars will dominate this setting to the
detriment of the street scene which will be compounded by the utilitarian compound
created by the 1.8m high railed enclosure to the parking bays for plots 1 &2 and the
1.8m high close boarded fence enclosing the rear gardens of plots 1 &2 with the
potential focus on proprietary garden sheds and conservatories; the bland rear
facade of the terrace of dwellings 1 to 4; the larger fenced bin collection enclosure
for dwellings 5 -9 has been moved away from the road edge but is still the focus of
the view on the approach into the village from the north and clearly visible from the
road junction.

The Hollow — street scene elevation extract showing car parking in front of the 3
terrace dwellings and parking area to western side of the site

In contrast the approved scheme for three dwellings set the car parking within the
site where it would be obscured from the street by dwellings and boundary
treatments, and the rear of dwelling 1 of the approved scheme has a projecting gable

Page 34



end to enliven this setting and maintain the characteristic relatively small scale roofs
of buildings lining the street edge.

With regards to residential amenity, Paragraph 17 of the NPPF states that one of the
overarching planning principles that underpin the planning system is that planning
should “always seek to secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity
for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings”.

In line with this objective, ‘saved’ Policy G2 seeks to ensure that development
proposals avoid undue disturbance, interference, conflict with or overlooking of
adjoining dwellings or uses that would be detrimental to existing occupiers.

In terms of impact to existing occupiers, the siting of units 3 and 4 is similar to that of
plot 2 of the approved scheme and units 1 and 2 approximately replicate the
situation of plot 1 of the approved scheme; units 5-7 are located over 30m from the
rear elevations of the bungalows in Hindes Meadow and over 18m from the side
elevation of Winterbourne House to the south; unit 8 is ground floor only and unit 9
has no windows on the east elevation preventing overlooking to the gardens of units
5-7 and only has a kitchen window on the south elevation.

The revised scheme has amended the position of the bin storage areas to meet
highway requirements although this would now be directly outside the bedroom
window of the 1 bedroom unit (unit 8). Whilst this is a second window to the
bedroom, and the agent considers that the relationship of the bin store to any side
window of unit 8 and 9 will not be problematic in amenity terms explaining that the
principal elevation of units 8 and 9 are to the western elevation; the west elevation
and other bedroom window to unit 8 has a poor outlook, overlooking the communal
parking area. Amending the scheme to address highway issues (explained in
section 9.5) is considered to have resulted in a worse impact to residential amenity
for future occupiers.

Page 35



i

1]
h “!!'_l'_l?]'

Extract from layout plan showing position of bin collection stand adjacent to the
bedroom window of the 1 bedroom ground floor unit.

Whilst it is not considered that the proposed scheme will result in undue overlooking
or conflict with existing dwellings in the vicinity of the site; given the above
comments, it is considered that cumulatively, the scale of the development proposed
(and in particular the scale and extent of the built form and open and dominant
hardstanding/parking spaces) amounts to overdevelopment of the site and will create
a poor living environment to the detriment of the amenities of the future occupants of
the site and the overall character and appearance of the site.

9.5 Highway safety

The highways officer considered that the previously refused scheme did not provide
sufficient on-site bin storage facilities for bins to stand whilst waiting to be emptied,
did not provide pedestrian facilities along The Hollow site frontage with a layout
proposing car parking spaces remote from the dwellings would generate an increase
in pedestrian traffic on a highway lacking adequate footways and insufficient and
inadequate on-site parking facilities with only one off-street visitors parking space. It
was also considered that as the parking spaces accessed from The Hollow (and 1
accessed from the High Street) are within the flood flow path/floodplain storage area
(floodzones 2 and 3), it was considered that these could potentially flood and lead to
parking on the local highway network. These issues could lead to obstruction of the
local highway network, impede, endanger and inconvenience all road users to the
detriment of highway safety and the previous application was refused on these
grounds.

Page 36



Parking standards for new dwellings are set out in the Wiltshire Local Transport Plan
2011-2026 — car parking strategy:

Table 7.1 Minimum parking standards (allocated parking)

Bedrooms Minimum spaces

1 1 space

203 2 spaces

4+ 3 spaces
Visitor parking 0.2 spaces per dwelling (unallocated)

The on-site parking requirements for the 9 dwellings proposed are 16 allocated
spaces and 1.8 visitor spaces. The proposed scheme provides 16 allocated spaces
and 1 visitor space.

This amended scheme provides additional on-site bin storage facilities and adds a
paved footway along The Hollow site frontage.

The Council’s urban designer consultation response refers to the consented
proposal which placed all the car parking outside of the flood zone contour and
raises concerns on the practicality and convenience of accessing vehicles with the
double banked arrangement within the confines of the courtyard parking shown for
plots 1 to 4 inclusive; the remoteness of the parking spaces for dwellings 5, 6 and 7,
the location of the parking within flood zone and unavailability of these spaces and
accessibility to dwellings and bin stores during a period of flooding and only one
visitor space being provided.

9 allocated parking spaces are within the flood zone contour; the footpath access to
units 8 and 9 is within the flood zone contour, and no additional visitor parking
space has been provided.

However, the planning agent has provided photographs having been monitoring the
recent flooding situation in Shrewton confirming that whilst the winter of 2013/14
has been the wettest on record (since records commenced in 1910) and
exceptionally high groundwater levels in the Oct 2013 to Jan 2014 period; the river
has remained in-bank past the Laundry site and whilst there has been flooding
elsewhere, the application site has not flooded:

Page 37



Photograph from agent dated 13/02/2014 from Elston Lane showing site has not
been flooded.

Photograph from agent dated 13/02/2014 looking west showing site has not been
flooded.

Whilst the responsibility for plotting flood zones rests with the Environment Agency
and not the local planning authority (and as such the site remains within flood zone
2 and 3); taking into account the consultation response from the Environment
Agency raising no objections to the proposal and the fact that the site has not
flooded this year, in combination with the close proximity of the site to the parking
area associated with the recreation ground (which could accommodate visitor

Page 38



parking); the highways officer has raised no objections to the level of parking or the
proposed parking within the flood zone contour.

The highways officer is satisfied that the development will not have any significant
impact on highway safety and raises no highway objections subject to conditions.

9.6 Impact to SSSI/SAC

The site backs onto the River Till, which is a tributary of the River Avon and
component of the River Avon System Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and
Special Area of Conservation (SAC). This site has protection under national and
international legislation and the Conservation (Natural Habitats & c) Regulations
1994.

Under the Habitat Regulations 1994, any development with the potential to affect a
SAC and its designated species must be subject to strict scrutiny by the decision
maker, in this case the local planning authority. The Authority should not permit any
development, which would have an adverse effect on the integrity of the River Avon
SAC, alone or in combination with other developments, unless certain rigorous tests
are met.

Applications need to supply sufficient information to allow the Council to determine
whether there will be likely significant effects of the development on the SAC
features (4 species of fish, a species of snail and aquatic vegetation) and
demonstrate that appropriate measures will be taken to ensure that the river system
is protected from any pollution and how these will be addressed.

Having regard to consultation responses and any other information available, the
local planning authority needs to decide whether the plan or project, as proposed,
alone or in-combination would adversely affect the integrity of the site, in the light of
its conservation objectives. That is, whether the plan or project would adversely
affect the coherence of the site's ecological structure and function, across its whole
area or the habitats, complex of habitats and/or populations of species for which the
site is or will be classified.

The council’s ecologist has completed a Judgement of Likely Significant Effect which
demonstrates there will be no likely significant effects on the River Avon SAC.

There is a potential for the development to have an effect on the River Avon System
SSSI and SAC, during the construction phase but this could be overcome through
the imposition of conditions requiring a contaminated land investigation and a
detailed construction method statement to be submitted to and approved by the local
planning authority.

Subject to the imposition of these conditions it is considered that the development
will not adversely affect the integrity of the European Site.

Page 39



9.7 Contaminated land

A phase 1 desk study and Report on a Ground Investigation has been submitted as
part of the application documentation which includes recommendations for additional
work which could be conditioned and the council’s contaminated land officer raises
no objections.

9.8 Protected species

The ecological assessment submitted with the application found no presence of
protected species on site although the buildings were considered to have the
potential to support bats and nesting birds and mitigation measures in relation to
these could be conditioned.

Following concerns raised by the parish council to the previously application for 3
dwellings (S/2013/0406) that water voles may be using the river; the council’s
ecologist visited the site and advised that there is no suitable habitat for this species
in the near vicinity of the development as the riverbanks on either side of the river
both up and down stream of the road bridge next to the development are about 1m
tall and built of brick/concrete blocks; there is no fringing vegetation and stream
water occupies the entire width of the channel and there is no chance of water voles
either burrowing or feeding near or being affected by the proposed development.

Applications should include biodiversity enhancement measures, in accordance with
paragraph 118 of the NPPF and subject to transferring the condition from the
approved scheme for nesting and roosting opportunities for birds and bats, the
council’s ecologist has advised that this application for 9 dwellings doesn’t involve
changes that are different to the previously approved scheme (S/2013/0406) as far
as ecology is concerned and no objections are raised.

9.9 Affordable Housing — SWCS Core Policy 3, Recreational open space — saved
policy R2 of Salisbury District Local Plan)

The proposals trigger the requirement for on-site affordable housing provision of
25% on site provision under Core Policy 3 of the South Wiltshire Core Strategy and
for recreational open space contributions under saved policy R2.

Core Policy 3 states ‘the provision of affordable housing will be negotiated on a site-
by-site basis taking into account the viability of the development’. A site is viable if
the value generated by its development exceeds the costs of developing it and also
provides sufficient incentive for the land to come forward and the development to be
undertaken.

The recently published National Planning Practice Guidance refers specifically to
how ‘viability should be considered for brownfield site in decision taking’ and refers
back to the NPPF which sets out a core planning principle that in making decisions,
local planning authorities should encourage the effective use of land by re-using land
that has been previously developed (brownfield land), provided that it is not high
environmental value. To incentivise the bringing back into use of brownfield sites,
the guidance states that local planning authorities should take a flexible approach in

Page 40



seeking levels of planning obligations and other contributions to ensure that these do
not make a site brownfield site unviable.

The guidance goes onto state that where an applicant is able to demonstrate to the
satisfaction of the local planning authority that the planning obligation would cause
the development to be unviable, the local planning authority should be flexible in
seeking planning obligations.

The guidance goes onto state it is particularly relevant for affordable housing
contributions which are often the largest single item sought on housing
developments. These contributions should not be sought without regard to individual
scheme viability, but where safequards are necessary to make a particular
development acceptable in planning terms, and these safeguards cannot be
secured, planning permission should not be granted for unacceptable development.’

In the context of unviable developments Affordable housing and recreational open
space contributions are not considered ‘essential’ to enable developments to ‘work’
either in isolation or within their wider context.

The applicant has provided an open book financial viability appraisal to the New
Housing Team. The Housing Officer has used this to complete a financial appraisal
of the development.

The 9 unit scheme will result in a Gross Development Value (GDV), well below the
normal minimum of 15-20% and the financial appraisal has shown that it will not be
viable for the developer to provide on-site affordable housing or contributions
towards recreational open space.

9.10 Archaeology

The site is in an area of archaeological interest and already there is made ground
across much of the site, there may well be an earlier top and subsoil which may seal
archaeological remains and as such there is potential for archaeological remains to
be on site. The council’s archaeologist has advised that the buildings appear older
but have been in use as a laundry since the earlier part of the 20th century and there
appears to be some machinery that was associated with that use still present within
the buildings.

The council’s archaeologist has recommended that if the application was approved a
written programme of archaeological investigation would need to be agreed. This
would need to take the form of a recording of the existing buildings prior to
demolition and an archaeological watching brief.

9.11 Other issues

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) came into force on 27" March
2012 and makes it clear that planning law requires applications for planning
permission to be determined in accordance with the development plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. Paragraph 12 of the NPPF confirms that
the ‘NPPF does not change the statutory status of the development plan as the

Page 41



starting point for decision making’ and proposed development that is in accordance
with an up-to-date Local Plan should be approved and proposed development that
conflicts should be refused unless other material considerations indicate otherwise.

The South Wiltshire Core Strategy which retains saved policies of the Salisbury
District Local Plan (which were deemed to be up to date and relevant) was adopted
in February 2012 and is now the statutory development plan and is considered to be
an up-to-date plan.

9.111 Housing Land Supply

The NPPF requires each Local Planning Authority to identify and update annually a
supply of specific deliverable sites sufficient to provide five years worth of housing
against their housing requirements with an additional buffer of 5% to ensure choice
and competition in the market for land (paragraph 47). The implications being, if this
cannot be demonstrated, then the policies in the development plan relevant to the
supply of housing cannot be considered to be up to date. In these circumstances,
unless any adverse impacts would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, proposals should be considered favourably for permission (NPPF
paragraph 14). The adequacy or otherwise of a 5 year land supply is therefore a
material consideration in the determination of this application.

The planning agent has referred to the emerging Wiltshire Core Strategy and the 5-
year Housing Land Supply and considers that the Council is unlikely to remain able
to demonstrate a 5.25 year supply of housing land.’

The SWCS is expected to be replaced by the draft Wiltshire Core Strategy which
sets out the long-term planning and development aims for Wiltshire and that was
examined in public by an independent Planning Inspector between 6 May 2013 and
18 July 2013.

The Wiltshire Core Strategy proposed that a minimum of 37,000 homes should be
built from 2006 — 2026 within Wiltshire. The Inspector asked the council for more
information on certain areas of the strategy through his latest procedural letter dated
2" December 2013 including housing land supply and that the housing requirement
should be increased to approximately 42,000 new dwellings.

The Council has gathered further evidence for the Inspector, EXAM/91 (Housing
Land Supply Statement 2014) and EXAM/84 (Addendum Housing Requirement
Technical Paper) are relevant to Housing Land Supply.

Table 3 of the Housing Requirement Technical Paper 28/02/2014 sets out the
deliverable housing land supply for the period 2013-2018 for each Housing Market
Area (HMA) updated to reflect the current land supply and revised HMA
requirements:

Page 42



Estimated Five year Number of
Housing housing housing Deliverable | years
Requirement | completions | requirement supply deliverable
Housing Market Area 2006-2026 2006-2014 2014-2019 2014-2019 | supply
East Wiltshire 5,940 2,636 1,377 1,545 5.61
North and West
Wiltshire 24740 9,233 6,461 7,285 5.64
South Wiltshire 10,420 3,305 2,965 3,592 6.06

Swindon (within

Wiltshire) 9200

Table 3: Housing Land Supply relative to the housing requirement (Updated table 3 of the
Housing Land Supply Statement, August 213)

Each of the HMAs currently has five years’ supply of deliverable land for housing
development, with South Wiltshire having 6.06 years deliverable supply. The topic
paper submitted to the Inspector explains that housing land supply is strong in South
Wiltshire, reflecting decisions that have already been taken about sites through the
adopted South Wiltshire Core Strategy. The housing trajectory for South Wiltshire
shows a sufficient supply of deliverable land to support a five year supply for the 4
years 2014/2015 and therefore there is no urgent or immediate need for further
housing to be permitted on this site to meet strategic requirements:

1200 Housing Trajectory for South Wiltshire HMA
1000 |  m— g
Completions
800 - Pb.u'-.uuvfallecfu-em»t-
600
400
200
O T T T
A PO O NN
Q3(0\“ 6\\0 Qq,@ NN
A AD A AD AT AR AT AR AR ART AP

Housing trajectory 2006-2026 for South Housing Market Area

Page 43




9.112 Viability

It is considered highly likely that an acceptable form of development will involve
fewer units than currently proposed.

The planning agent has advised that fewer units would raise viability issues and
refers to Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and paragraph
173 of the NPPF stating that these indicate that financial viability is a material
consideration to an application.’

Paragraph 173 is as follows:

‘Ensuring viability and deliverability

173. Pursuing sustainable development requires careful attention to viability and
costs in plan-making and decision-taking. Plans should be deliverable.

Therefore, the sites and the scale of development identified in the plan should not be
subject to such a scale of obligations and policy burdens that their ability to be
developed viably is threatened. To ensure viability, the costs of any requirements
likely to be applied to development, such as requirements for affordable housing,
standards, infrastructure contributions or other requirements should, when taking
account of the normal cost of development and mitigation, provide competitive
returns to a willing land owner and willing developer to enable the development to be
deliverable.’

Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) provides
that a local planning authority must have regard to a local finance consideration as
far as it is material. Section 70(4) of the 1990 Act (as amended) defines a ‘local
finance consideration’ as a grant or other financial assistance that a relevant
authority has received, or will or could receive, in payment of the Community
Infrastructure Levy/CIL.

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a new charge which local authorities will
be empowered, but not required, to levy on most types of new development. The
proceeds of the levy will provide new local and sub-regional infrastructure to support
the development of an area in line with local authorities” development plans. CIL will
be levied in pounds per square metre of the net additional increase in floorspace of
any given development. Wiltshire Council does not currently have a CIL as this is
dependent upon the progress of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and in the meantime
therefore S106 contributions are applied where they meet all of the following tests:

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms
(b) directly related to the development; and
(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

Therefore, as explained in section 9.9, and the planning practice guidance on ‘how
should viability be considered for brownfield sites in decision taking’; local planning
authorities should take a flexible approach on levels of S106 contributions/CIL on

Page 44



brownfield sites and in this case the council has taken a flexible approach as it has
been demonstrated that it is not viable to seek either affordable housing or
recreational open space contributions.

The deterioration of the buildings is giving cause for concerns to residents in the
village and the Parish Council have supported the scheme observing that whilst it is
considered that ‘it was still too many houses for the site, but agreed to support the
application as it was necessary for new homes to be built.’

The design and access statement explains that

‘the buildings on the site are old, in need of significant visual (and structural)
improvement and generally detract from the street scene’ and ‘the removal of the
industrial buildings and their replacement with residential units would be expected to
result in a net benefit to the character and appearance of the local townscape and to
the amenities of the existing neighbouring residential properties’ although accepts
that ‘it is nevertheless important to consider the physical form of the surrounding
properties in relation to the proposed development to ensure that the resulting
scheme has at least a neutral effect, or preferably, a net improvement to residential
amenities.’

The planning practice guidance on

‘how should viability be considered for brownfield sites in plan making’ advises that
local plan policies should reflect the desirability of re-using brownfield land, and the
fact that brownfield land is often more expensive to develop and particular
consideration should be given to local plan policies on planning obligations, design,
density and infrastructure investment.’

Officer’s accept that the site is in a poor state of disrepair, and whilst ‘consideration’
should be given to local plan policies on design and density to encourage
development on brownfield sites; and the agent has advised that fewer units could
raise viability issues; this is not considered to override the fact that the proposed
scheme is considered to be unacceptable as an overdevelopment of the site for the
reasons explained in section 9.4.

10. Conclusion

Overall, it is considered that the scheme will result in an overdevelopment of the site,
to the detriment of the character and appearance of the area which is considered to
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefit of redeveloping the vacant,
brownfield site.

Recommendation
To Refuse the application for the following reason:

(1) The proposed development by reason of the number of dwellings proposed; the
bulk/massing (magnitude in three dimensions), scale (size in relation to

Page 45



surroundings) and design of the development in relation to existing buildings, and the
layout and open siting and extent of vehicular hardstanding and car parking
constitutes a poor design of development leading to a proposal that amounts to an
overdevelopment of the site that is vehicle dominated. The proposal will have an
adverse visual impact within the street scene; to the detriment of the character and
appearance of the area which has a rural context and where the primary routes
through the village are characterised by a fragmented form and grouping of
traditional small scale buildings.

By reason of the above, the development will also create a poor living environment
to the detriment of the amenities of the future occupants of the site. Overall, the
development is contrary to saved policies G1, G2, D2, H16 and C6 of the Adopted
Salisbury District Local Plan and included in the saved policies listed in Appendix C,
of the South Wiltshire Core Strategy, Objective 16 of the Council's design guide
"Creating Places", draft policy 57 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and guidance within
the NPPF.

Page 46



14/0147/FUL - Shrewton Steam Laundries Ltd, High Street, Shrewton, SP3 4BZ

Wane Wood
8
-1
a
=
The Square

chertert

Prbeck House

Beech
Garden
Hollow
N Reach
Tilbrock
Howse
esireraTk
et
- il
T House
w FB
=
=
Dawrslea

R

HiNbeg 4

GP

Wiy

g The Old Bakery T
[

PH

Church Cottage

Church

Howse

Sundial Cottages

8.1m

LONDON READ

13
2,
‘ ‘ 2% 33
PH 2\ % %
s |5\
'S ozl | 8B %3
i /52 £E 3
4 B B
Sonis
Brasmore:

Capii

0 s

132

w N %
I R R R R R e —m———

Page 47

) / N
& <
5 A
g Payilon L Twr The Wamen 201m &
/ ETucuche | € il ; 2
4 : :
Barlly | & >
Tennis court B B y
i ~
| & ! § / . .
3 o
Play ground 5 7%
ILET: Hipgs & .
?‘ej"' > " Bundial Cottages
3 IO, Reach 2 . (
z 2 2 , The Piggeries
Ig House < 2 |1 g = L
% 3 g . £ i
o =3 /
&7 | & sunandMpen ap L 2l " ey
EAE Heuse Feme LONDON ROAD =T -
i e = ek 5823
] it / PH B B9 A/, s,
Cleeve ‘Wane Wood o e w- T % Aud
- - e 7, M | 220 d z\%
THE_HOLLOW Purbec House o % R=e e s 8 & Ve
- teoumtm e FB ey, The O BaFSY / ﬂme_%
% 3 '
| ] = 5[ B Gateways
z Sanis v SHreg
i = = / # Braemare = t
E 21 PH F
3 | Roshank | % 12| &
z | 3|2 3| el < el 2 g £ caprl
£ | B & £ 8% & The Square Church Catage: . 2 e
2 s g g * Church S -
& T 1omh) Brookside ety 5
£l = Highlands
SupSta Coppers Labuman =
= p vine - =
Yonayy / war
Pheing Bybrook o Mernl 2
Villas o =
e Z
2| Hero g z
W g, = Tes - £
rtiayy 7
Bingle Helme, & i) r
i O Vg Church
Ly Fuiang H T 2
Evergreen ”omu:f“" z R 7 & g
G <L & 2
Cardery Cot U 7 E
rdery Cottage R =
Graystones / ety




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Planning Appeals
	7a 14/01088/FUL - Hersanmine, Scotts Hill, Donhead St Andrew, Shaftesbury, SP7 9EP
	14 01088 MAP

	7b 14/01417/FUL - Shrewton Steam Laundries Ltd, High Street, Shrewton, Salisbury, SP3 4BZ
	14 0147 MAP


